COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA
Office of the Attorney General

Jason S. Miyares 202 North Ninth Street
Attorney General Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 786-2071

February 18, 2022 Fax (804) 786-1991

Virginia Relay Services
800-828-1120
7-1-1

Honorable Scott S. Harris

Clerk

Supreme Court of the United States
Washington, D.C. 20543

Re: West Virginia et al. v. Environmental Protection Agency, et al., No. 20-
1530; North American Coal Corporation v. Environmental Protectional
Agency, et al., No. 20-1531; Westmoreland Mining Holdings LLC v.
Environmental Protectional Agency, et al., No. 20-1778; and North Dakota v.
Environmental Protectional Agency, et al., No. 20-1780.

Dear Mr. Harris:

This case involves Section 111(d) of the Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7411(d),
pursuant to which the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) previously
promulgated the Clean Power Plan (CPP). See 80 Fed. Reg. 64,662 (Oct. 23, 2015).
EPA claimedin the CPP that Section 111(d) conferred onit the authority to determine
which sources of energy power plants could use to generate the nation’s electricity,
with an express intention of eliminating coal as a lawful means of energy generation.
After this Court stayed the implementation of the CPP, West Virginia v. EPA, 136 S.
Ct. 1000 (2016) (No. 15A773), EPA reconsidered its interpretation of Section 111(d)
and repealed the CPP on the ground that it exceeded EPA’s statutory authority, see
84 Fed. Reg. 32,520, 32,523 (July 8, 2019). It further promulgated the Affordable
Clean Energy (ACE) Rule to replace the CPP. See id. at 32,532.

Virginia and other States challenged EPA’s repeal of the CPP and its replacement
with the ACE Rule. See Am. Lung Ass’nv. EPA, 985 F.3d 914, 941 (CADC 2021) (per
curiam). The D.C. Circuit granted the petitions for review, vacated the repeal of the
CPP and the ACE Rule, and remanded them to EPA. Id. at 995.

West Virginia, other States, and private parties that had intervened in the D.C.
Circuit to defend the CPP repeal and the ACE Rule petitioned this Court for
certiorari. Virginia joined a group of States and municipalities in opposition to the



petition, arguing in part that the D.C. Circuit’s rejection of the CPP repeal and ACE
Rule were correct. Br. States Municipalities in Opp. at 1, 30, West Virginia v. EPA,
No. 20-1530 (Aug. 5, 2021). This Court granted the petition. West Virginia v. EPA,
142 S. Ct. 420 (Oct. 29, 2021) (No. 20-1530). On January 18, 2022, the group of States
and municipalities filed their merits briefin this Court. Br. New York & Other State
Municipal Respondents, West Virginia v. EPA, No. 20-1530 (Jan. 18, 2022). Virginia
did not join that brief, nor has it filed a merits brief of its own. The purpose of this
letter is to explain why Virginia did not file a merits brief.

Following the change in Administration on January 15, 2022, the Attorney General
has reconsidered Virginia’s positionin this case. Virginia is no longer of the view that
EPA’s repeal of the CPP was unlawful. Virginia is now of the view that Section 111(d)
did not grant EPA authority to issue the CPP, and its repeal was therefore required,
largely for the reasons stated in the Brief of Petitioners State of West Virginia, et al.,
West Virginia v. EPA, No. 20-1530 (Dec. 13, 2021).

I would appreciate it if you would circulate this letter to the Members of the Court.

Sincerely,

/s/ Andrew N. Ferguson

Andrew N. Ferguson
Solicitor General of Virginia

CC: See attached service list.



20-1530, 20-1531, 20-1778, 20-1780
SERVICE LIST:

Andrew Michael Grossman
Baker & Hostetler LLP
1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.-W.
Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20036
202-861-1697
agrossman@bakerlaw.com
Counsel for Westmoreland Minings Holdings LLC

Jacob Moshe Roth
Jones Day
51 Louisiana Avenue NW
Washington, DC 20001
202-879-7658
yroth@jonesday.com
Counsel for The North American Coal Corporation

Paul Martin Seby

Greenberg Traurig LLP

1144 15th Street

Suite 3300

Denver, CO 80202

303-572-6500

sebyp@gtlaw.com

Counsel for the State North Dakota

Lindsay Sara See
Office of the West Virginia Attorney General
1900 Kanawha Blvd E, Bldg 1 Rm 26E
Charleston, WV 25305
304-558-2021
lindsay.s.see@wvago.gov

Counsel for the State of West Virginia, et al.


mailto:agrossman@bakerlaw.com
mailto:yroth@jonesday.com
mailto:sebyp@gtlaw.com
mailto:lindsay.s.see@wvago.gov

Beth Susan Brinkmann

Covington & Burling LLP 850

Tenth Street, NW

Washington, DC 20001-4956

202-662-5312

bbrinkmann@cov.com

Counsel for Consolidated Edison, Inc., Exelon Corporation, National Grid USA, New
York PowerAuthority, Power Companies Climate Coalition, and Sacramento
Municipal Utility District

Sean Hoe Donahue
Donahue, Goldberg & Littleton
1008 Pennsylvania Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20003
202-277-7085
sean@donahuegoldberg.com
Counselfor Non-Governmental Organizationand Trade Association Respondents

Elbert Lin
Hunton Andrews Kurth LLP
951 E. Byrd Street Riverfront
Plaza, East Tower Richmond,
VA 23219-4074
804-788-7202
elin@HuntonAK.com

Counsel for America's Power

Elizabeth B. Prelogar
Solicitor General
United States Department of Justice 950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20530-0001
202-514-2217
SupremeCtBriefs@USDOdJ.gov
Counsel for U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, et al.

Emily Church Schilling
Holland & Hart LLP
901 K Street NW Suite 850
Washington, DC 20001
202-393-6500
ecschilling@hollandhart.com
Counsel for Basin FElectric Power Cooperative
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Misha Tseytlin
Troutman Pepper Hamilton Sanders LLP
227 W. Monroe St.
Suite 3900
Chicago, IL 60606
(608) 999-1240
misha.tseytlin@troutman.com
Counsel for National Mining Association

Barbara Dale Underwood
Solicitor General
Office of the Attorney General
28 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10005-1400
212-416-8016
Barbara.underwood@ag.ny.gov
Counsel for State of New York, States and Municipalities

Steven Chiajon Wu
New York Office of the Attorney General
28 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10005
212-416-6312
steven.wu@ag.ny.gov
Counsel for State of New York
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